
CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING TO BE HELD VIRTUALLY VIA CISCO Webex ** 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

  
7:00 P.M. July 13, 2020 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION by Nicol Ghazi, Islamic Center of Delaware County 

 
3. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the special meeting of Council held 

on June 22, 2020, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission  

meeting held on June 3, 2020, as recorded and transcribed. 
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 

Commission meeting held on February 5, 2020, as recorded and 
transcribed. 

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Shade Tree Commission 
meeting held on February 25, 2020, as recorded and transcribed.  

D. Resolution No. 20-38, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
submit an application for Ohio Public Works Commission 
Emergency Program Grant Funding and to enter into grant 
agreements as required for the reconstruction of the John Street 
Bridge. 

E. Resolution No. 20-39, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
submit grant application updates to the Mid-Ohio Regional 
Planning Commission for the Point Improvement and Citywide 
Signals Phase I projects. 

F. Resolution No. 20-40, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
submit applications for State and Federal Grant Funding and to 
enter into grant agreements as required for the planning, design 
and construction of the East Central Avenue Improvement Project.  

G. Establish July 27, 2020 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 20-40, an 
ordinance amending Section 913.23 – Charges established for 
sewage auxiliary meters within the Code of Ordinances for the City 
of Delaware and declaring an emergency.  

H. Establish July 27, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 20-41, an 
ordinance approving a Rezoning Amendment for Dylan J. Menges 
Trustee for 748 Cheshire Road from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-



3 (One-Family Residential District) on 1.853 acres.  
 

5. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Due to the meeting being held virtually, written public comment is 
requested to be received either before or during the meeting through 
email at emccloskey@delawareohio.net. To provide live public comment 
please email emccloskey@delawareohio.net to sign up by 5 p.m. the date 
of the meeting. Comments received on Facebook may have to be 
addressed by staff subsequent to the meeting.  
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

7. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION 
A. COVID-19 Update - Health Commissioner Shelia Hiddleson, Delaware 

General Health District 
B. Discussion of Face Covering Requirements 

 
8. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 20-41, a resolution directing the City 

Manager to evaluate City policies and procedures with respect to 
diversity, inclusion and equity. 
 

9. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 20-42, a resolution amending 
previously adopted policy concerning the establishment of honorary 
street names. 
 

10. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 20-43, a resolution establishing the 
honorary street designation of Little Brown Jug Way in the City of 
Delaware for commemorative purposes.  
 

11. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-40, an ordinance amending 
Section 913.23 – Charges established for sewage auxiliary meters within 
the Code of Ordinances for the City of Delaware and declaring an 
emergency.  
 

12. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-41, an ordinance approving a 
Rezoning Amendment for Dylan J. Menges Trustee for 748 Cheshire 
Road from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) on 1.853 acres.  
 

13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-42, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., for the Ravines at 
Olentangy Section 2, Phase A containing 49 single-family lots on 23.966 
acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just 
north of Randall Road.  
 

mailto:emccloskey@delawareohio.net
mailto:emccloskey@delawareohio.net


14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-43, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., for the Ravines at 
Olentangy Section 2, Phase B containing 34 single-family lots on 9.412 
acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just 
north of Randall Road.  
 

15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-44, an ordinance authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with Main Street Delaware 
and declaring an emergency.   
 

16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-45, an ordinance authorizing the 
creation of the Local Coronavirus Relief Fund as well as supplemental 
appropriations and declaring an emergency.  
 

17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 20-46, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2020 Appropriations and declaring an emergency.  
 

18. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT & COVID-19 UPDATE: 
 

19. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

20. ADJOURNMENT 
 

** This meeting will be a virtual meeting.  Residents are encouraged to view 
online through the City of Delaware Facebook page.  To comply with the CDC 
recommendation prohibiting group meetings, no in person attendance by 
Council, staff, or the public will be available.  
 
 













1 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
JUNE 3, 2020 

MOTION SUMMARY 
 

 
ITEM 1. Roll Call 
Chairman Simpson called the meeting to order at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Members Present Virtually: Robert Badger, Jim Halter, Dean Prall, Andy Volenik, 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle, Vice-Chairman George Mantzoros and Chairman 
Stacy Simpson 
 
Staff Present Virtually: Carrie Fortman, Project Engineer, Jordan Selmek, Zoning 
Officer, Lance Schultz, Zoning Administrator and Dave Efland, Planning and 
Community Development Director 
 
ITEM 2. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on March 4, 2020, as recorded and transcribed. 

 
Motion:  Mr. Prall motioned to approve the Motion Summary for the Planning 
Commission meeting held on March 4, 2020, as recorded and transcribed, 
seconded by Mr. Badger.  Motion approved with a 6-0-1 (Mantzoros) vote. 
 
ITEM 3. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 

A. Delaware County Fairgrounds  
(1) 2020-0400: A request by the Delaware County Commissioners for 

approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Delaware County 
Fairgrounds from R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and B-3 
(Community Business District) to R-3 and B-3 PMU on 
approximately 101 acres and located at 236 Pennsylvania Avenue.  

(2) 2020-0401: A request by the Delaware County Commissioners for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the Placement of a 
Mixed-Use Planned Overlay District (PMU) on the Delaware County 
Fairgrounds on approximately 101 acres zoned R-3 and B-3 PMU 
and located at 236 Pennsylvania Avenue. 

(3) 2020-0402: A request by the Delaware County Commissioners for 
approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Delaware County 
Fairgrounds on property zoned R-3 and B-3 PMU on approximately 
101 acres and located at 236 Pennsylvania Avenue.  

(4) 2020-0403: A request by the Delaware County Commissioners for 
approval of two alley vacations for the Delaware County Fairgrounds 
on property zoned R-3 and B-3 PMU on approximately 101 acres 
and located at 236 Pennsylvania Avenue. 
 



2 
 

 
Anticipated Process 
a. Staff Presentation 

Mr. Schultz reviewed the location map and the area of the 
fairgrounds located in the City vs. the County.  The majority of 
zoning in the City is R-3.  The entire site is designated as 
institutional on the City land use plan.  He discussed the planned 
pedestrian path location and requirements and sidewalk 
requirements along Pennsylvania Avenue from Euclid Avenue to 
the USA Reserve Training Center’s east property line.  He 
discussed the requirement of the alley vacations relating to the 
construction of the 4H building. He reviewed the recommended 
conditions for approval.  
 
Mr. Halter voiced his concern over the motorplex area (Sub-Area 
6) and that it does not discuss what it can be used for and when.  
The location of the surrounding neighbors should be considered 
when the fair is not operating.   
    

b. Applicant Presentation 
APPLICANT: 
Tony Eyerman 
Eyerman Planning Associates 
50 North Sandusky Street 
Delaware, Ohio 
 
Mr. Eyerman discussed concerns over the pedestrian path.  The 
multi-use path will be generally on the west side of the property 
and the original agreement was signed in 2008 and would like to 
get that done as quickly as possible,  with security issues related 
to the fairgrounds both off season and during the fair.  The multi-
use trail will have a fence to limit access to the fairgrounds to 
address security concerns.  The Fair Board is requesting that 
there be a condition for the sidewalk along Pennsylvania Avenue 
to be installed by 2025 due to the decrease in bed tax and 
economy concerns.  He also discussed that they would prepare a 
tree survey for the entire fairground property and present to the 
City Arborist for his approval.  He discussed that the motor cross 
area is usually only used during the fair time, but he can discuss 
with the Fair Board on limiting the times of use in this area.  
 
Mr. Volenik discussed the need to have active transportation 
options and that would feel that the additional sidewalks would 
be used and provide a good safety feature and recommend that 
the sidewalk be tied to the project.  Mr. Halter discussed that 
past developers have had to put the sidewalks in at the same time 



3 
 

of the development and feels that five years is a long time to hold 
off on the project.  Mr. Eyerman discussed that the Fair Board 
agrees the value of the sidewalk to the community.  Mr. Prall 
discussed his preference to not have a date and can be added 
during the Preliminary Plan.  The Commission agreed they were 
not in favor of an amendment to condition 10.   
 

c. Public comment (public hearing) 
There was no public comment submitted via email.  
 

d. Commission Action 
 
Motion:  Mr. Prall motioned to approve 2020-0400, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Halter.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Prall motioned to approve 2020-0401, seconded by 
Mr. Halter.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Prall motioned to approve 2020-0402, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Halter.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Prall motioned to approve 2020-0404, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Halter.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  

 
B. Sheetz 
(1) 2020-0417: A request by Skilken Gold Real Estate Development for 

approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Sheetz located on Lot 12722 (within Sub-Area 6) of Coughlin’s 
Crossing on approximately 1.88 acres located east of US 23 just 
south of Penny Way and zoned A-1 PMU. 

(2) 2020-0418: A request by Skilken Gold Real Estate Development for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Sheetz located on Lot 12722 
(within Sub-Area 6) of Coughlin’s Crossing on approximately 1.88 
acres located east of US 23 just south of Penny Way and zoned A-1 
PMU. 

 
Anticipated Process 
a. Staff Presentation 

 
Mr. Schultz provided the staff report to the Commission and 
discussed the subject site location.  The applicant is proposing 
to contstuct a approximate 6,070 square foot gas station and 



4 
 

restaurant on the 1.88 acre site.  There will not be a drive thru 
and will be the only gas station which is allowed in the Coughlin 
Crossing Development if approved.  He discussed the access to 
the property and will be a right-in only curb cut on Penny Way 
and a full movement curb cut on Coughlin Lane which will be 
shared with Blue Sky Carwash.  He discussed the location of the 
dumpster on the site and ice box.  He discussed the landscaping 
and screening requirements including mounding along US 23.  
Building elevations and materials were reviewed along with the 
proposed signage.  
 
Mr. Prall voiced concerns over the colors and the architect style.   
 

b. Applicant Presentation 
Frank Petruziello 
President of Development 
Skilken Gold Real Estate Development 
4270 Morse Road 
Columbus, Ohio 
 
Sarah Gold 
Project Manager 
Skilken Gold Real Estate Development 
4270 Morse Road 
Columbus, Ohio 
 
Mr. Petruziello discussed that they had no concerns on the staff 
conditions and recommendations.  He discussed that the 
landscaping plan will be done by the developer but will occur 
during the construction.  He discussed the design of the building 
and to make it more monochromatic.   
 
Mr. Prall questioned the hours of operation.  Mr. Petruziello 
informed the Commission that the store will be open 24 hours 
and they would like to start construction late this year or early 
next year.   
 
Mr. Efland addressed Facebook concerns that this development 
is mixed use and this particular site was not proposed to be 
housing.   
 

c. Public comment (public hearing) 
 
No public comment was received via email.  
 

d. Commission Action 



5 
 

 
Motion:  Mr. Halter motioned to approve 2020-0417, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Volenik.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  
 
Motion:  Mr. Halter motioned to approve 2020-0418, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Volenik.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  
 

 
C. 2020-0626: A request by Glenn Road Capital LLC for approval of a 

Final Subdivision Plat for Belmont Place Section 8 containing five 
commercial out lots on approximately 12.88 acres zoned B-3 PMU 
(Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) and located on Glenn Parkway and Peachblow Road.  

 
Anticipated Process 
a. Staff Presentation 

 
Mr. Schultz reviewed the proposal to have a Final Subdivision Plat 
for five commercial out lots in Section 8.  When these out lots are 
developed in the future a Final Development Plan will be required 
for each lot. The proposed commercial development would have full 
movement curb cut from Glenn Parkway at Crownover Way as the 
primary access point to the development.  Out lot 4, located south 
of Peachblow Road and fronting US 23, would have a full 
movement curb cut on Peachblow Road located just east of the 
retention pond and potentially a right-in/right-out curb cut 
located just west of the retention pond depending on the type of 
development on lot 5.   
 
Mr. Prall questioned when will a traffic signal would be warranted 
in the area.  Ms. Fortman to provide this information at a later date 
after doing some research.  Mr. Prall discussed the signage location 
for 20 mph zones.   
 

b. Applicant Presentation 
 
Kevin McCauley 
Glenn Road Capital, LLC 
6689 Dublin Center Drive 
Dublin, Ohio 43017 
 
Mr. Prall questioned the type of businesses expected in the out 
lots.  Mr. McCauley discussed initial discussions with realtor 



6 
 

offices, medical offices or day care.   
 

c. Public comment (not a public hearing) 
 

There was no public comments received via email. 
 

d. Commission Action 
 

Motion:  Mr. Badger motioned to approve 2020-0626, along with 
all staff recommendations and conditions, seconded by Mr. 
Volenik.  Motion approved by a 7-0 vote.  

 
ITEM 4. PLANNING DIRECTOR REPORT 
  
ITEM 5. COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Badger informed the Commission that he will be resigning from the board.  
The Commission each individually thanked Mr. Badger for his service to the 
Commission and the City of Delaware.  
 
ITEM 7.  NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  July 1, 2020 
 
ITEM 8.  ADJOURNMENT:   
 
Motion:  Chairman Simpson moved for the Planning Commission meeting to 
adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m.  

 

 

















  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-38 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN 

APPLICATION FOR OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION EMERGENCY 
PROGRAM GRANT FUNDING AND TO ENTER INTO GRANT AGREEMENTS AS 

REQUIRED FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE JOHN STREET BRIDGE. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

The John Street bridge is a 21’-0 long single lane concrete beam structure 
serving vehicular traffic and pedestrians heading to Blue Limestone Park from 

Catherine Street.  It serves as the only exit from the park area as King Avenue 
off William Street is a signed one-way street heading into the park.  On May 19th, 
the City experienced a substantial rainfall event of approximately 6” over a 12-

hour period resulting in flooding of the Delaware Run beyond its bank.  As a 
result, the John Street bridge was overtopped by flood waters resulting in 
damage to the pavement and underlying structure.  Upon subsequent inspection 

after removal of damaged pavement, it was discovered that more substantial 
deterioration has occurred of the main deck members prompting a closure of the 

structure pending additional evaluation.  It was the recommendation of the 
engineer that the bridge deck must be replaced. 
 

Plans are now under design for replacement of the bridge superstructure with 
the goal of bidding and constructing improvements in the first half of 2021.   

 
 



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:   
The City will be applying for Ohio Public Works Commission Emergency Program 

grant funding that could if approved, provide up to 50% of the replacement cost.  
The program application requires consent legislation from the local governing 

body.  The City is positioning itself to submit an early application as the funding 
is first-come-first-served and limited to $3 million total during the upcoming 
funding cycle. 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  

The preliminary estimate to complete the design and needed repairs to the bridge 
is $300-$400K.  The OPWC program could provide 50% of the funding with the 
remainder to be identified as part of the 5-year CIP currently under review.  The 

City contribution could be an estimated $200,000. 
 

POLICY CHANGES:   
N/A 
 

PRESENTER(S):   
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval  

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
Images 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-38 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR OHIO PUBLIC 
WORKS COMMISSION EMERGENCY PROGRAM 
GRANT FUNDING AND TO ENTER INTO GRANT 

AGREEMENTS AS REQUIRED FOR THE 
RECONSTRUCTION OF THE JOHN STREET BRIDGE. 

 
WHEREAS, the John Street bridge was recently damaged during the 

June 10, 2020 flooding of the Delaware Run; and  

 
WHEREAS, subsequent inspection of the bridge deck following the flood 

revealed substantial deterioration of the bridge deck concrete beams; and  

 
WHEREAS, the John Street bridge was subsequently closed to traffic 

until repairs could be made; and  
 
WHEREAS, grant funding is available through the Ohio Public Works 

Commission Emergency program on a first come basis for eligible projects; and  
 

 WHEREAS, an application for OPWC Emergency Program funding is 
being prepared to submit.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to submit an 
application for OPWC Emergency Program grant funds, and to enter into 

agreements as required for the planning, design and construction of bridge 
improvements to the John Street bridge.     

 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-39 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT GRANT 

APPLICATION UPDATES TO THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION FOR THE POINT IMPROVEMENT AND CITYWIDE SIGNALS 

PHASE I PROJECTS.   
 
BACKGROUND:   

The City continues to advance both The Point Improvements and Signals Phase 
I projects according to schedule.  Both projects have been previously awarded 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission grant funding in the 2016 and 2018 
Attributable Funding cycles.  The Point project has $14 million in grant funding 
while the Signals Phase I initiative has $2.5 million in funding. The Signals Phase 

I project is scheduled for 2021 construction.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:   

As part of the 2020 funding cycle, the City is required to provide application 
updates to MORPC regarding the project status, schedule and current budget 

estimate.  These application updates are due on July 10th and will revise terms 
of the grant funding based on the details provided by the City.  The City will be 
requesting that the funding awarded for The Point project be moved up in the 

Transportation Improvement Program schedule to be available to the City for 
potential SFY 23 construction.  

 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   

No Change in project estimate.   
 
POLICY CHANGES:   

N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S):   

William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval  
 

ATTACHMENT(S):   
Updated applications 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-39 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO SUBMIT GRANT APPLICATION UPDATES TO THE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 
THE POINT IMPROVEMENT AND CITYWIDE SIGNALS 
PHASE I PROJECTS.   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has been awarded grant funding 

through the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission for The Point 

Improvement and Citywide Signals Phase I projects; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the City is required to submit project application updates 
with each new round of grant funding identifying current project budgets and 
schedules; and  

 
WHEREAS, application updates are to be submitted due to the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission by July 10, 2020.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and 

submit required application updates to MORPC. 
 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $�$�

�

���
�����������������������	����������
������������������������������ �����

%���&���'������'(�����)�����*�*�'������+�����
%���&��

,-./01234567809676:;8610;8<0,-4:/1;=>0?4760@A>0@B@B0C<DE0FG

�H�H��&

�����

��!� ��)�����

%�������

I��(�$�*�����

'�����



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� ��$�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� %�$�

$� &'()*(+,)-./(01/.'23/,0.1-4)05

6���7��

�� &'()*(+.'+(8409.:1)1-4+

;,+*9.)1:4

������7

<1*9.)1:4

=���

&2>>,?

��@�

A,9/4

6����B�	��B�@������

C:1,/

�7���D����7����������

EF()4

GH#�I���%
$H�$

JKK+4**.L

##��@��=�������M�

JKK+4**.N

O,95

6���7��

&9194

�P

Q,'

#%�$�

����� ������R�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� #�$�

%� &'()*+,-.*/01.2,0(3-*44*+,05*-62,*

������7777



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� ��$�

$� %&'()*+,-./)

0���1���2������23�����4�����5�5�2������6�����

�� 7879,%:8,;<=,.>><?-)@A

$��B""

C� D9%,:8;>A

CC#

#� E*+<F<+G,*.+)?'&G

�����1��������H����� ������2������

�� %&</.&G,I&'()*+,+GI)

2������6�����

��J��� ����J�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� ��$�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� %�$�

	�������������

��������&�'����������(�')�	����

*��������*����� +����

�������,�������������������*������ -�.�/�%����

0�1

����	������� -����

2� ������ ���������	������� -����

����������� -����

0��
������ -�.�/�%����

'�3��������������������&�*�3�������� +����

�������,�������������������*������ -$��/������

0�1

����	������� -����

2� ������ ���������	������� -����

����������� -����

0��
������ -$��/������

+�+�2���������&�'����������(�')�	������-..�/�%����

�� ����

4

4

4

4

4

�� ����

4

4

4

4

4

*������������

�

�

�

�

$��

*������������

�

�

�

�

$��



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� %�$�

�����
�&
'�(�)��'*�	����

�����
�&
+�(�� ,�������� -����

�������&�������������������.������ /0�1������

2�+

����	������� /����

3� ������ ���������	������� /����

����������� /����

2��
������ /0�1������

4�����(����� ����� -����

�������&�������������������.������ /����

2�+

����	������� /����

3� ������ ���������	������� /����

����������� /����

2��
������ /����

-�-�3������
�&
'�(�)��'*�	������/0�1������

�� ����

5

5

5

5

5

�� ����

5

5

5

5

5

.������������

�

�

�

�

$��

.������������

�

�

�

�

�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� "�$�

	����� �����	����

	����� �����	���� � %���� &'()*+,-

�������.�������������������/������ 0�1���1������ 23456647789:3

;�< &'()*+,-

����	������� 0�1#$=1�#���� 234>3?46>@9:3

A� ������ ���������	

������

0���� 28988

����������� 0����

;��
������ 0$#�1�=#���

	����� �����B��������� %���� &'()*+,-

�������.�������������������/������ 0$��1������2:>54788988

;�< &'()*+,-

����	������� 0���� 28988

A� ������ ���������	

������

0���� 28988

����������� 0����

;��
������ 0$��1������

%�%�A�	����� �����	������0�1=$�1������

�� ����

C

C

C

C

C

�� ����

C

C

C

C

C

/������������

"#�#

$��

�

�

���=

/������������

�

�

�

�

$��



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $��$�

�%&'�

%����

�������(�������������������)������ *����

+�,

����	������� *����

-� ������ ���������	������� *����

����������� *����

+��
������ *����

%�%�-��%&'���*����

�� ����

.

.

.

.

.

)������������

�

�

�

�

�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $$�$�

$� %&'()*+),*-')(-'./&'(

����
�#
�0

�� 12.(+34)-5//&2.6()'7(),*-')(-'./&'()/('7*8*3*94)+*2)&:4);7&-(-)+*2)<7.,7)+5:8-)&2()2(=5(-'(8

>(?9?@)A&-(8)*:)&)-./.3&2);2*B(,')&:8)&8B5-'(8)+*2)-.'(),*:8.'.*:-C?

DEFGHFGHIEJHKJGLMNGJHOKMPHIEJHLKJQFMRGHRLSTIJUHIVMHWJTKGHTXMYHZ[JTGJHKJQFGJHTGHNJ\JGGTKWY

]���	��̂�����	������������_�� ���������������������_����̂��̀������a���������������b��������������_�

 ���������c�����0�����������������������̀��������!� �������d�	��̂���������������̀̀�������̀������

������������������̀����� ���������e���������� ����������������������e����e����f����e����e�������g

e�h�̀���������!� ��

0� i7&');2.j&'()+.:&:,.&3)-5;;*2')7&-)A((:)*2)<.33)A();2*j.8(8)'*)'7.-)'2&:-;*2'&'.*:);2*B(,'k)l;(,.+4

'7()&/*5:'-)&:8)(:'.'.(-);2*j.8.:9)'7()-5;;*2'@)'7(.2)2(3&'.*:-7.;)'*)'7();2*B(,'@)&:8)'7()'./(3.:(

+*2)'7.-)-5;;*2'?)m7.-)/&4)A()-5;;*2')<.'7.:)'7();&-')'72(()4(&2-)*2),*//.'/(:'-).:'*)'7()+5'52(?

#� i7&');5A3.,)+.:&:,.&3)-5;;*2')7&-)A((:)*2)<.33)A();2*j.8(8)'*)'7.-)'2&:-;*2'&'.*:);2*B(,'@)-5,7)&-

92&:'-@)3*&:-@)A*:8-@)'&n).:,(:'.j(-)>(?9?@)lo1@)mo%@)pqr@)mos@)tu%%@)tu%v@)pu%rC)*2)*'7(2

;2*92&/-k)l;(,.+4)'7()(:'.'.(-);2*j.8.:9)'7()-5;;*2'@)'7(.2)2(3&'.*:-7.;)'*)'7();2*B(,'@)'7(

-*52,(-)*+)'7();5A3.,)+5:8.:9)>(?9?@),&;.'&3);2*92&/)+2*/)9(:(2&3)2(j(:5(@)'7():&/()*+)'7()mos@

(',?C)&:8)'7()'./(3.:()+*2)'7.-)-5;;*2'?

�� %*(-)'7()-;*:-*2).:'(:8)'*)5-()wxqypz&''2.A5'&A3()+5:8-)+*2);2(3./.:&24)(:9.:((2.:9)5:8(2)'7(

.:,(:'.j();2*j.-.*:-)*+)l(,'.*:){?{?|)*+)'7()y*3.,.(-k

�}��

�~�

�� o+)'7(),*-')(-'./&'()7&-),7&:9(8)A4)92(&'(2)'7&:)��);(2,(:')-.:,()'7();2(j.*5-)&;;3.,&'.*:)*2

5;8&'(@)(n;3&.:)<74?

DEJH��JV�H���Z�HTPMRNIHJNIJKJSHFNHIEJHIT�[JHT�MQJUH��U���U���UHKJLKJGJNIGHIEJHGITIRGH�RMU

VEF\EHFGH��U���U���HFNH���H��YH�OHKJ�RJGIFNXHTH\ETNXJUHL[JTGJHJ�L[TFNH�J[MVY

~�� ���������������������̀�����	��� ���������d�e�� ��e�����d���d������������� ������ ��e��

�b�����



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $��$�



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $%�$�

$� &'()*+,-)*./'0(1+*,23(*2*1'4)+/51+-'4*.,2)(6

7��

8�

9 ������

:; <-=()+'4()
&2+(

><<?&&?@@@@A

B,(1C*-D

1'E.=(+(F

�� B'4)5=+24+*25+,'/-G2+-'4
����%���$H

�� I5/.')(*24F*4((F*)5JE-++2= �K�%$���$H

 � L5JE-++2=*'D*D(2)-J-=-+M*)+5FM*'/*N=+(/42+-3(*O32=52+-'4*P(.'/+Q�R�������

S����������������T��UT����������������V�V��������W�����W����� ��T���V�

�T��S��W�����X���� ��V����� �������������� �������� ����� W�

�$��$����$

�� I/(D(//(F*2=+(/42+-3(*2../'32= �$��$����$

�� L+2Y(*Z*)5JE-++2=
�#������$"

V� I/(=-E-42/M*P[\*)5JE-++2=
�#������$"

�� ]-42=*P[\*)5JE-++2=
�$��%�����

�� L+2Y(*:*)5JE-++2=
$���"���$"

�� O43-/'4E(4+2=*F'15E(4+*2../'32=
$���"���$"

!� P[\*25+,'/-G2+-'4 ���$H�����

�̂ L+2Y(*_*)5JE-++2= �#��K�����

�� P[\*21̀5-)-+-'4*1'E.=(+(
�#�$�����$

�� ]-42=*.=24)*24F*J-F*.21C2Y(*)5JE-++2=*+'*[&[a �#��$����$

�� Nb2/F*1'4+/21+ �K��$����$



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $#�$�

%� &'()'*+,+*-./)011*(1*2'0*-./30)2*)4..05267*8/66/9(5:;*</.0*(58/.=>2(/5*>?/42*@,@AB1*+./30)2

,0C06/-=052*+./)011*D+,+E*)>5*?0*8/45F*/5*2'0*90?*>2G

'22-GHH999IF/2I12>20I/'I41H-./30)21H-F-H+>:01HF08>462I>1-J

D'22-GHH999IF/2I12>20I/'I41H-./30)21H-F-H+>:01HF08>462I>1-JE

$

#� &'>2*60C06*/8*05C(./5=052>6*F/)4=052>2(/5*(1*2'0*-./30)2*0J-0)20F*2/*.0K4(.0;*,01).(-2(/51*/8

2'010*L>20:/.()>6*MJ)641(/5*DLME*60C061*)>5*?0*8/45F*(5*2'0*LM*+./:.>==>2()*N:.00=052I

	�

L>5*7/4*-./C(F0*F/)4=052>2(/5*2'>2*@,@A*>:.001*9(2'*2'(1*F020.=(5>2(/5;*,/)4=052>2(/5*)>5

?0*>57*)/==45()>2(/5*9(2'*@,@A*(5F()>2(5:*2'0*60C06*/8*05C(./5=052>6*F/)4=052>2(/5I

O��

P�

�� Q8*>57*=(6012/501*)'>5:0F*?7*=/.0*2'>5*R*=/52'1*1(5)0*2'0*-.0C(/41*>--6()>2(/5H4-F>20S*0J-6>(5

9'7I



��������� ����	
�������������������

���������������� �������������������������!� ���������"#$��������� $��$�

%������

&'()*+,-) ./(0,1)1*0+ 23 45)67'0+*'1

�����#�#89:;
%<=�


>�?>8<����=8��������@

����
��


�#A�$�=��#"�=$�B

�C���D��� ��� ������

9:;
%<=�
>�?>8< ������ ��������@ ����
��


$?A$���>�$�����B

����8C��E

9:;
%<=�


>�?>8<����=8�����8<���E��F<��������@

����
��


��A$���?����>��B

�G�� ��8�� ����



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
2020 Attributable Funding Application

US-36 & SR-37 from W of Foley St & E of East St to SR-521,
Major widening (adding through lanes), from 2 lanes to 5 lanes,
Bridge Replacement

Delaware

This document generated at: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 12:16 PM

Overview

Phase Project Update

Due date July 10, 2020

Status

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

1 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



1. Sponsoring local public agency

Delaware

2. Sponsor project manager

First name

Matthew

Last name

Weber

Suffix

P.E.

Title

Deputy City Engineer

Email

mweber@delawareohio.net

Phone

(740)203-1721

Address 1

20 East William St.

Address 2

City

Delaware

State

OH

Zip

Applicant info

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

2 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



43015

3. Project legislation effective date

mm/dd/yyyy

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

3 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



1. Project name

US-36 & SR-37 from W of Foley St & E of East St to SR-521, Major widening (adding through lanes), from 2 lanes to 5 lan

2. ODOT PID (if assigned)

103626

3. MTP ID(s)

1347

4. Activity category

Major widening/New roadway

5. Primary project type

Major widening (adding through lanes)

Reference info

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

4 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



Cost estimates

Preliminary Engineering (PE) Costs

Detailed Design Total

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $415,866.00

New

MORPC Federal $0.00

Local match to MORPC Federal $0.00

Other Federal $374,279.00

Non-Federal $41,587.00

Environmental / Preliminary Development Total

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $2,917,467.00

New

MORPC Federal $0.00

Local match to MORPC

Federal

$0.00

Other Federal $2,625,721.00

Non-Federal $291,746.00

TOTAL Preliminary Engineering (PE) Costs: $3,333,333.00

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Dollar amounts

0

0

0

89.99990381517124

10.000096184828768

Dollar amounts

0

0

0

90.0000239934162

9.999976006583793

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

5 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



Right-Of-Way (ROW) Costs

Right-of-way Acquisition Total

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $2,000,000.00

New

MORPC Federal $0.00

Local match to MORPC

Federal

$0.00

Other Federal $1,500,000.00

Non-Federal $500,000.00

Utility Relocation Total

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $50,000.00

New

MORPC Federal $0.00

Local match to MORPC Federal $50,000.00

Other Federal $0.00

Non-Federal $0.00

TOTAL Right-Of-Way (ROW) Costs: $2,050,000.00

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Dollar amounts

0

0

0

75

25

Dollar amounts

100

0

100

0

0

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

6 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



Construction Costs

Construction Contract Total Inflated

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $22,725,000.00 $24,454,372.50

New Inflated

MORPC Federal $10,260,000.00 $11,040,786.00

Local match to MORPC

Federal

$4,110,808.00 $4,423,640.49

Other Federal $6,400,000.00

Non-Federal $1,954,192.00

Construction Engineering Total Inflated

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $1,750,000.00 $1,883,175.00

New Inflated

MORPC Federal $1,400,000.00 $1,506,540.00

Local match to MORPC

Federal

$325,207.00 $349,955.25

Other Federal $0.00

Non-Federal $24,793.00

TOTAL Construction Costs: $24,475,000.00

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Dollar amounts

63.23787898789879

71.39473298926546

28.605267010734536

28.16281628162816

8.599304730473047

Dollar amounts

98.58325714285714

81.14968232797571

18.850317672024286

0

1.4167428571428573

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

7 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



OTHER

Railroad Force Account Total

Method for entering amounts: Dollars $2,925,000.00

New

MORPC Federal $2,340,000.00

Local match to MORPC

Federal

$585,000.00

Other Federal $0.00

Non-Federal $0.00

TOTAL OTHER: $2,925,000.00

Percents

%

%

%

%

%

Dollar amounts

100

80

20

0

0

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

8 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



1. Date of cost estimate

2020-06-20

2. Briefly summarize the cost estimate methodology for any phases for which funds are requested

(e.g., based on a similar project and adjusted for site conditions).

Costs are based on the Stage 1 Estimate provided by Gannett Fleming. The amount of contingency

added to the estimate was adjusted to 12.5% by city engineering staff based on engineering

judgement. The construction estimates are for all improvements originally scoped in the project area

including SR 521 Improvements.

3. What private financial support has been or will be provided to this transportation project?

Specify the amounts and entities providing the support, their relationship to the project, and

the timeline for this support. This may be support within the past three years or commitments

into the future.

4. What public financial support has been or will be provided to this transportation project, such

as grants, loans, bonds, tax incentives (e.g., SIB, TID, CRA, TIF, JEDD, JEDZ, CEDA) or other

programs? Specify the entities providing the support, their relationship to the project, the

sources of the public funding (e.g., capital program from general revenue, the name of the TIF,

etc.) and the timeline for this support.

The TRAC approved $9.5 million and Tier I status for the project in its November 2019 listing. TRAC

committed $1.5m for RW in FY20 and $8m for construction in FY22. MORPC's commitment is

currently in FY25. We are asking MORPC to advance its commitment to FY23 per the current

schedule.

5. Does the sponsor intend to use MORPC-attributable funds for preliminary engineering under

the incentive provisions of Section 4.4.3 of the Policies?

 Yes

 No

6. If the cost estimate has changed by greater than 10 percent since the previous application or

update, explain why.

No change in the amount of MORPC's commitment, $14,000,000, is requested.

The TRAC approved $9.5 million and Tier I status for the project in its November 2019 listing. TRAC

committed $1.5m for RW in FY20 and $8m for construction in FY22. MORPC's commitment is

currently in FY25. We are asking MORPC to advance its commitment to FY23 per the current

schedule.

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

9 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



1. Does this project have a construction phase?

Yes

No

Schedule

2. Milestones
Date (MM/DD

/YYYY)

Check if

completed

a. Consultant authorization
12/06/2017

b. Purpose and need submittal
06/04/2018

c. Submittal of feasibility study or Alternative Evaluation Report: The

date when the Alternative Evaluation Report of feasbility study is received

for review by the District from a consultant or local public agency.

11/23/2018

d. Preferred alternative approval
01/18/2019

e. Stage 1 submittal
02/10/2020

f. Preliminary ROW submittal
02/10/2020

g. Final ROW submittal
07/31/2020

h. Stage 2 submittal
07/31/2020

i. Environmental document approval
11/06/2019

j. ROW authorization
10/09/2020

k. Stage 3 submittal
03/18/2021

l. ROW acquisition complete
04/08/2022

m. Final plans and bid package submittal to ODOT
07/29/2022

n. Award contract
01/06/2023

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

10 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



3. Which PDP process is the project currently following? More information about ODOT’s Project

Development Process (PDP) can be found on the web at: http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects

/pdp/Pages/default.aspx (http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects/pdp/Pages/default.aspx)

2

4. What level of environmental documentation is the project expected to require? Descriptions of

these Categorical Exclusion (CE) levels can be found in the CE Programmatic Agreement.

D2

Can you provide documentation that ODOT agrees with this determination? Documentation can

be any communication with ODOT indicating the level of environmental documentation.

Yes

No

5. If any milestones changed by more than 6 months since the previous application/update,

explain why.

More time was provided for ODOT to acquire right-of-way for the project, so the end of the schedule

was relaxed knowing that MORPC funds will not be available as early as originally anticipated. Final

tracings are scheduled to be complete in September of 2021 but cannot be submitted as a final

package to ODOT too far in advance of the sale date. A detailed schedule is attached to this

application.

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

11 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



Uploads

File name Uploaded on By Question id

IMG_20190821_183154.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:06.576Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183200.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:20.716Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183205.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:27.430Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183212.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:34.006Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183216.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:45.206Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183220.jpg 2020-06-04T20:46:51.030Z typical_section

IMG_20190821_183305.jpg 2020-06-04T20:47:04.050Z plan_view

103626 DEL-36-1103

STAGE 1 PLANS.pdf

2020-06-04T21:10:21.520Z nvogt@morpc.org general

Point Schedule_Updated

2020-06-15.pdf

2020-06-24T14:58:08.900Z mweber@delawareohio.net general

The Point Prelim Est

062020.pdf

2020-06-24T14:58:57.883Z mweber@delawareohio.net general

MORPC-Attributable Funding https://apps.morpc.org/AttributableFunding/projectupdate/3212/printable

12 of 12 6/24/2020, 12:16 PM



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-40 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT 

APPLICATIONS FOR STATE AND FEDERAL GRANT FUNDING AND TO ENTER 
INTO GRANT AGREEMENTS AS REQUIRED FOR THE PLANNING, DESIGN AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE EAST CENTRAL AVENUE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.   
 

BACKGROUND:   

The City is preparing an application for Federal Attributable funding provided 
through MORPC, and State Safety Funding provided through ODOT for 

improvements to East Central Avenue from the Olentangy River to Moore Street.  
If awarded, funding should be available for the preliminary engineering, 
environmental review, property acquisition, utility relocation and construction 

phases.  The preliminary engineering process will include opportunity for public 
involvement in review of feasible design alternatives.  Additional funding 
applications are anticipated through other State and Federal grant programs.  

The project purpose is to improve safety along this heavily travelled corridor 
through a combination of improvements that reduce congestion and delay and 

improve pavement quality.  It is anticipated that Central Avenue could likely be 
widened with an accompanying expansion of the Central/Lake intersection and 
realignment of the Channing St intersection.  A project the size of the proposed 

improvements would take five or six years from commencement to completion 
and cost an estimated $12 to $15 million in total project funding.         

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  



 As part of the 2020 Attributable Funding cycle application process, the City is 
required to provide consent legislation demonstrating the commitment and 

support of the project by local governing body.  This legislation provides consent 
to submit applications to any federal and State grant program and to enter into 

agreements as required.  Screening applications are submitted to MORPC in 
August with final application due in October.  The State Safety Funding program 
application is due by September 1st to ODOT district.   The MORPC screening 

application is due on Friday, July 17th with the final application due on October 
8th.    
 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
 N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
The City will have local matching shares to any State and Federal funding 

sources requiring 10% to 20% and could total to as much as $3M to $5M in total 
contribution.  Identifying the funding required for an initiative this size must be 

completed in phases through multiple requests over several year, similar in 
manner as to how the Point project is being funded.  Each successful project 
step strengthens future funding requests. 

 
POLICY CHANGES:   
N/A 

 
PRESENTER(S):   

William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   

Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

Concept Improvement Exhibit 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-40 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS FOR STATE AND 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDING AND TO ENTER INTO 
GRANT AGREEMENTS AS REQUIRED FOR THE 

PLANNING, DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
EAST CENTRAL AVENUE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.   

 
WHEREAS, the City has successfully advanced improvements TO the 

East William Street corridor and is in final design for improvements to The 

Point intersection; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has been studying traffic and safety 

concerns on the east side of the City to determine potential improvements to 
the East Central Avenue corridor from the Olentangy River to The Point 

intersection; and  
 
WHEREAS, the East Central Corridor represents the final component of 

major east side roadway improvement initiatives to address traffic delay and 
safety; and  

 
WHEREAS, for a project with a scope the size of the East Central project 

to advance, substantial State and Federal funding is required; and  

 
 WHEREAS, State and Federal Grant funding is available through the 

State Highway Safety Program, MORPC Attributable Funding Grant application 

process, and the Transportation Advisory Council (TRAC).   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and 
submit applications for State and Federal grant funding and to enter into 

agreements as required for the planning, design and construction of the 
proposed East Central Avenue Improvements.   

 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



N

C
H

A
N

N
IN

G
 S

TR
EE

T

WINTER STREET

LA
K

E 
ST

R
EE

T

E
S

T
E

LL
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
N

N
E

T
T

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
A

M
M

O
N

D
 S

TR
EE

T

1,000 LF to 
Foley Street

FIGURE 7: RECOMMENDED 
ALTERNATIVE

rbush
Callout
Reduced NB queues from Central signal will help address angle crash issue here

rbush
Callout
Pedestrian improvements to extend to William Street, creating full ped connectivity btw William & Central

rbush
Callout
Project limits/3-lane widening will extend eastward to "The Point" construction limits (approx. Foley Street)

rbush
Callout
Extend project lighting west to Olentangy River bridge.No widening needed west of Estelle, but pavement to be reconstructed btw Estelle & bridge 

rbush
Callout
widening of at-grade RR crossing

rbush
Text Box
City of DelawareEast Central Avenue ProjectFunding Application

rbush
Text Box
Full Project Length of Central:Full-depth reconstructionUpgraded sidewalks & lightingFiber/lighting conduit banks

rbush
Callout
Realignment of Channing(replace signal)



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  8    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-41 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  

 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A resolution directing the City Manager to evaluate City policies and procedures 

with respect to diversity, inclusion and equity.   
 
BACKGROUND: 

At a prior City Council meeting, Council gave direction to the City Manager to 
examine City policies and procedures as it relates to diversion, equity and 

inclusion.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

This resolution follows and formalizes the instruction by Council.  

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

N/A 
        

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 

POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 

Tom Homan, City Manager 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   



RESOLUTION NO. 20-41 
 
 A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EVALUATE CITY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES WITH 
RESPECT TO DIVERSITY, INCLUSION AND EQUITY. 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Delaware strives to be a welcoming, inclusive city 
that values and embraces the differences that make us unique; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is committed to maintaining the 

confidence of all residents that they will be treated fairly by their government.   

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  Council reaffirms its commitment to the principles of 

diversity, equity and equal opportunity for all. 
 

SECTION 2.  The City Manager is directed to provide Council with an 

initial report by July 27, 2020, to include the following: 
1. A recommendation for a process for the City to engage the community in 

its efforts to promote equity, diversity, and inclusion 
2. A summary of the steps the City has taken to promote diversity, equity, 

and inclusion 

3. An initial review of areas in which the City can improve its efforts 

4. A recommended schedule and process for completing a thorough review 
of the City’s practices, procedures, and polices as they pertain to 

diversity, equity, and inclusion. 
 

SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-42 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  

 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AMENDING PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED POLICY CONCERNING 

THE ESTABLISHMENT OF HONORARY STREET NAMES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The naming of streets in honor of past individuals is a common practice in many 
communities, including Delaware.  In the past, the City has permitted the 

honorary naming of Henry Street as Branch Rickey Way and Euclid Avenue as 
Pacer Way.  Currently we have received a request to rename Pennsylvania 
Avenue in honor of the Little Brown Jug which will celebrate this year its 75th 

anniversary.   
 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This amendment clarifies to the previously adopted policy to include events of 
significance, such as the Little Brown Jug.  

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

        
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The City is able to produce the recommended honorary street name signs in 

house and at minimal cost.   
 

POLICY CHANGES: 



This is an amended policy. 
 

PRESENTER(S): 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Honorary Street Naming Policy 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-42 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED 
POLICY CONCERNING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 

HONORARY STREET NAMES. 
  

WHEREAS, in order to provide a process and guidance to which such 

honorary street naming can be further considered and approved by the City, 
Council passed Resolution No. 19-35; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City periodically receives requests to rename a street or 
portion thereof; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Council desires to amend the Honorary Street Name Policy to 
expand the eligible honorary designation to include events of significance to the 

City; and 
  

 WHEREAS, a street may be given a honorary name when there is good 
cause for this honorary designation and such designation will not be 
detrimental to the public interest; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The City shall adopt the amended Honorary Street Naming 

Policy to provide guidance to future requests. 
  
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after passage. 
 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 



 

 

Honorary Street Naming Policy (Rev. March 6, 2020) 

Definition: Honorary street names allow citizens the opportunity to honor people who have made 
significant contributions to the community and are intended to recognize and honor individuals or 
groups for a period of time without changing the official name of the street.   

Description: The honorary sign is of a similar size and shape as a standard street name sign. The 

honorary signs shall conform to the current federal street sign regulations governing lettering size, 

legend, and background colors as shown in examples.   Honorary street names shall include the 

suffix ‘Way”.  Only one honorary sign shall be allowed at an intersection and shall be posted 

adjacent to the designated street name sign.  

Qualifications for Honorary Recognition: This method of honoring individuals, groups, entities or 

events is reserved for those having local ties to the community, and whose body of lifetime 

achievement has received local, state or national recognition for contribution to the cultural arts, 

music, education, government leadership, athletics, or sciences.  Individual honorees will only be 

considered posthumously. Individual family tribute or commercial and corporate related recognition 

does not qualify.  

Requests for Honorary Signs: Requests for new honorary signs shall be made in writing to the City 

Manager’s Office describing the justification for the honorary designation, requested location(s) and 

timeframe for the sign is to be posted, and include details of requested text and graphic 

appearance.    

Approvals:  Each request for honorary street name shall be considered by City Council and approved 

by council resolution.  

Cost: Honorary street signs shall conform in appearance to the example shown and shall be 

provided and installed by the City at no cost.  Text shall be formatted to fit on a maximum 36-inch 

sign blank for purposes of safety and stability. 

Public vs Private Streets: This policy applies to all public streets in the City of Delaware. It does not 

attempt to regulate honorary street names on private streets and driveways.  

 

Example Honorary Street Sign Format:  

 

 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-43 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  

 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:   
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE HONORARY STREET DESIGNATION OF 

LITTLE BROWN JUG WAY IN THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR COMMEMORATIVE 
PURPOSES. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The City has received a recent request to establish the honorary street name for 

the Little Brown Jug on Pennsylvania Avenue between Troy Road and North 
Sandusky Street.  
 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The City has adopted policy in regards to the establishment of honorary street 

names, by which City Council will consider in an open public process such 
requests. 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The City is able to produce the recommended honorary street name signs in 
house and at minimal cost.   

 
POLICY CHANGES: 

 



PRESENTER(S): 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Letter of request from Councilman Jones 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-43  
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE HONORARY 
STREET DESIGNATION OF LITTLE BROWN JUG WAY 

IN THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR COMMEMORATIVE 
PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has adopted policy concerning the 
establishment of honorary street name designation; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City amended the policy in Resolution No. 20-42 to 
include  

 
 WHEREAS, A request to designate Pennsylvania Avenue from Sandusky 
Street to Troy Road in commemoration of the Little Brown Jug has been 

presented to the City to celebrate the 75th anniversary; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the request meets the criteria established within the 
Honorary Street Naming policy; and  

 

 WHEREAS, there is good cause for the honorary designation, and such 
designation will not be detrimental to the public interest. 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 

 
 SECTION 1.  That Pennsylvania Avenue, extending from North Sandusky 
Street to Troy Avenue is hereby given the honorary designation as Little Brown 

Jug Way for commemorative purposes in honor of the 75th anniversary of the 
Little Brown Jug.  
 

 SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to erect honorary 
signage as approved by Council.  

 
 SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after passage. 

 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 

 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-40    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       July 27, 2020 @ 7:20 p.m. 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 

 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 913.23 - CHARGES ESTABLISHED FOR 

SEWAGE AUXILIARY METERS WITHIN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE 

CITY OF DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 

BACKGROUND: 
Section 913.23 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Delaware authorizes a 
$8.35 per month fee for utility customer accounts that have a deduct meter 

installed for billing purposes.  This fee was previously established to offset the 
administrative cost for manually reading a deduct meter on a utility customer’s 

account.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

The City of Delaware currently utilizes an automated meter reading system that 
collects consumption data from customer accounts electronically thereby 
negating the need for this $8.35 meter reading fee.  

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

This amendment to the Code of Ordinances was discussed with the Finance 
Committee at the June 17th committee meeting and was recommended for 
placement on the next City Council agenda.  

 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
There are 205 utility accounts that have a deduct meter currently installed at 

the service address on the account.  The $8.35 per month fee is deposited into 
the Water Fund (Fund 530).  Based on this information, the estimated annual 

revenue decline attributed through the amendment to Section 913.23 of the Code 
of Ordinances would be $20,541 which would not have a material impact on the 
cash flows for the Water Fund.   

 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

 
PRESENTER(S): 

Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval after second reading 
 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit 



 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 20-40 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 913.23 - 

CHARGES ESTABLISHED FOR SEWAGE 

AUXILIARY METERS WITHIN THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 

WHEREAS, Section 913.23 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of 

Delaware authorizes a $8.35 per month fee for utility customer accounts that 

have a deduct meter installed for billing purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City has implemented an automated meter reading system 

that gathers consumption data from water meters electronically thereby 

eliminating the need for this additional charge for utility customers; and 

WHEREAS, Exhibit A as enclosed with this ordinance outlines the 

amendment to section 913.23 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Delaware. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1:  That Section 913.23 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of 

Delaware be amended as outlined in Exhibit A.  

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 

law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 

SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 

safety, health and welfare of the City in an effort to remove a utility fee that is no 

longer applicable in support of the City’s utility enterprise operations and as 

such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

PASSED:  _________________________, 2020  YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________________       ________________________ 

               CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 
 



Exhibit A 

 

Existing Language 
913.23 - Charges established for sewage auxiliary meters. 

There shall be a one-time inspection fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to be paid prior to 
installation of the system. In addition, there shall be established a monthly service fee of eight dollars 
and thirty-five cents ($8.35) per month per meter to be applied to all property owners who request 
or have in service at the present time an additional meter or meters to be installed for deductions to 
be made to sewage charges levied where water used does not enter the sewage system. 

 

Proposed Amendment 
913.23 - Charges established for sewage auxiliary meters. 

There shall be a one-time inspection fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to be paid prior to 
installation of the system.  

 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 7/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-41    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       July 27, 2020 @ 7:30 p.m. 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR DYLAN J. 
MENGES TRUSTEE FOR 748 CHESHIRE ROAD FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL 

DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) ON 1.853 ACRES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

See attached staff report. 
 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on July 1, 2020.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 

N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 

N/A 
 

PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval  
 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-41 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR DYLAN J. MENGES TRUSTEE FOR 

748 CHESHIRE ROAD FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) ON 1.853 ACRES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 1, 2020 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Dylan J. Menges Trustee for 

748 Cheshire Road from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) on 1.853 acres (PC Case 2020-1037).  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for Dylan J. Menges Trustee for 

748 Cheshire Road from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) on 1.853 acres, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

 

1. The owner shall be required to obtain and pay for all normal and customary 
necessary easements, permits, and construction activities that may be required 

for any City utility connections.  In addition to normal and customary charges, 
if connection to the City sanitary sewer occurs in the future, the property shall 

pay the required additional connection fee of $15,713.03 for this property to 
connect to the Cheshire Rd Phase 2 Sub Trunk sewer line per the pre-existing 
agreement.   

2. The owner shall dedicate right-of-way along Cheshire Road per the City 
Engineer. 

3. The lots shall be consolidated into a single lot. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-42    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY T&R 

PROPERTIES INC., FOR THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY SECTION 2 PHASE A 
CONTAINING 49 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS ON 23.966 ACRES ON PROPERTY 

ZONED R-3 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON ROCHDALE RUN JUST 
NORTH OF RANDALL ROAD. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Platting of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 1, 2020. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-42 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES INC., FOR THE 

RAVINES AT OLENTANGY SECTION 2 PHASE A 
CONTAINING 49 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS ON 23.966 
ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON ROCHDALE 
RUN JUST NORTH OF RANDALL ROAD. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on July 1, 2020 

recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., 
for the Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase A containing 49 single-family lots on 
23.966 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 

Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just north of 
Randell Road (PC 2020-1165).   

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., 
for the Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase A containing 49 single-family lots on 

23.966 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just north of 

Randell Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 

change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 
2. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 

requirements in the approved development text. 
3. The single-family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 

standards of Chapter 1171. 

4. The house sizes shall be a minimum 1,400 square feet for a one story and 
1,800 square feet for a two-story house per the approved development text. 

5. A street tree plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

6. This section shall be subject to two per lot additional transportation fees of 

$1,000 each for a total fee of $2,000 per single family lot due at the time of 
building permit issuance. 

7. The owner shall deed the 13.044-acre parcel east of Rochdale Run to the 

City for a park. 



 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  

          ABSTAIN ____ 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 

 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-43    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY T&R 

PROPERTIES INC., FOR THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY SECTION 2 PHASE B 
CONTAINING 34 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS ON 9.412 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 

R-3 PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON ROCHDALE RUN JUST NORTH OF 
RANDALL ROAD. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Platting of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 1, 2020. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-43 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES INC., FOR THE 

RAVINES AT OLENTANGY SECTION 2 PHASE B 
CONTAINING 34 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS ON 9.412 
ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 PMU (ONE-FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON ROCHDALE 
RUN JUST NORTH OF RANDALL ROAD.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on July 1, 2020 

recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., 
for the Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase B containing 34 single-family lots on 
9.412 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 

Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just north of 
Randell Road (PC 2020-1166). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by T&R Properties Inc., 
for the Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase B containing 34 single-family lots on 

9.412 acres on property zoned R-3 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) and located on Rochdale Run just north of 

Randell Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 

change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 
2. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 

requirements in the approved development text. 
3. The single-family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 

standards of Chapter 1171. 

4. The house sizes shall be a minimum 1,400 square feet for a one story and 
1,800 square feet for a two-story house per the approved development text. 

5. A street tree plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

6. This section shall be subject to two per lot additional transportation fees of 

$1,000 each for a total fee of $2,000 per single family lot due at the time of 
building permit issuance. 

7. The owner shall deed the 13.044-acre parcel east of Rochdale Run to the 

City for a park. 



8. The owner shall dedicate a 20-foot-wide bike path easement along the 
northern portion of Section 2 Phase B adjacent to the railroad tracks to the 

City. 

 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































  FACT SHEET 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-44    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Kyle Kridler, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A LEASE 

AGREEMENT WITH MAIN STREET DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
In October of 2019, the City issued an RFP for interested parties to renovate the 

city property located at 20 East William Street and operate a welcome 
center.  Main Street Delaware’s proposal was selected.  Under the terms of the 

lease, Main Street Delaware’s ‘rent’ would come in the form of its investment in 
the property and the operation of the Welcome Center. 
 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Delaware Codified Ordinance Section 107.06, an ordinance is 
necessary for Council to authorize the City Manager to enter into a lease.  The 

ordinance serves as Council’s determination that it is desirable to lease land 
owned by the City. 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

 
 

 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Main Street Delaware is responsible for all improvements, utilities and ongoing 

maintenance costs.  The City may partner with Main Street Delaware on funding 
the ADA accessible ramp which is estimated between $20,000 - $40,000. 

  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

 
PRESENTER(S): 
Kyle Kridler 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval after second reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Memo 
Lease 

Welcome Center Proposal 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-44 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MAIN 

STREET DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 

WHEREAS, the property located at 20 East William Street, Delaware, 
Ohio 43015 has been vacant since the city’s Engineering Department moved to 
a new location; and  

 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that it is desirable to lease this land 

for the purpose of creating a downtown welcome center; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2019, the City issued a Request for Proposals 

(RFP) soliciting proposals to renovate and occupy the property and operate a 
downtown welcome center; and 

 
WHEREAS, Main Street Delaware submitted a proposal that was selected 

by City staff. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a 

lease agreement (attached) with Main Street Delaware for the property located 
at 20 East William Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015. 

 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 

law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code  
 
 SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This ordinance is hereby declared to 

be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, 
health, and welfare of the City by providing downtown visitors with restroom 

facilities for downtown events, and as such will be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage to allow renovations to begin. 
  

 
 
 

 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 

 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:   YEAS____NAYS____  

     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 

      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM:   R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
VIA:  Kyle Kridler, Assistant City Manager 
DATE:    July 7, 2020 
RE:  Delaware Welcome Center Lease Update  
 

Background 

As Council is aware, the City put out a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the Delaware 
Welcome Center at 20 E William Street (Sheets Building/former Engineering Building) back in 
late October of 2019.  The sole proposal that the City received as a response from the RFQ was 
from Main Street Delaware and Triad Architects (see first attachment).  Staff believes the 
proposal from Main Street Delaware to be in alignment with the vision for a Delaware Welcome 
Center and a natural partner to meet these needs. 

Staff and Main Street Delaware were prepared to present the proposed lease to City Council at 
the March 23, 2020 Council Meeting, but due to the events of COVID-19, both parties decided 
to postpone the lease agreement as immediate priorities had shifted.  Over the past two 
months, Main Street Delaware’s Board has continued to meet virtually as they create and 
execute on strategies to assist their membership through the COVID-19 recovery phases.  Per 
the request of Main Street Delaware, they would like to proceed with the lease agreement for 
the Delaware Welcome Center and staff is supportive in continuing this partnership.  Their 
Board believes that the facility will be a great resource to their membership in this rebuilding 
phase along with in promoting Downtown Delaware for the years to come.  They have also 
identified potential grants and funding opportunities to assist in the needed renovations for the 
Welcome Center. 

Staff has drafting the lease in collaboration with Main Street Delaware as a part of the 
Welcome Center Project (see second attachment).  As a part of their reinvestment into the 
building, they plan to put well over six figures into the remodeling of the facility.  As outlined in 
the proposed lease, the City is recommending an initial 10-year lease at $1/per year, with two-



 
 

 

five year renewal options.  Staff believes this to be a fair partnership for the level of investment 
Main Street will make into the City’s asset and the mutual benefit it will bring to the 
community.  Main Street has also approached Delaware City and County Convention and 
Visitors Bureau who may also have an interest in locating within this space.  We’ve spoken with 
Tim Wilson, Delaware Visitors Bureau Director who is interested in partnering and is currently 
located within Delaware’s COhatch. 

As a part of this agreement, the lease calls for the following activities to be housed within this 
building: 

a. Welcome Center 
b. Main Street Delaware Offices 
c. Retail Space 
d. Community Meetings/Gatherings/Event Space 
e. A public restroom shall be provided during [standard business hours/when Main Street’s 

office is open] and during Main Street Delaware Events held outside of business hours 
f. Subtenant Space with agreement from the City in alignment with the mission/intent of 

the Delaware Community Center 
g. Space for City of Delaware Literature in Welcome Center 

Staff believes Main Street to be the logical partner for a Welcome Center in Delaware as they 
operate as a further extension to the City’s Economic Development Team in promoting the 
downtown.  To ensure the needed investments are completed in a timely manner to the 
property, the lease states under Article 4 that the “Tenant shall make required improvements 
to the property as described below. This includes, but is not limited to: 

a. Renovation/improvements to the first level exterior porch within eighteen (18) months 
of the Commencement Date. 

b. Interior remodel work (flooring, fresh paint, general interior improvements) within sixty 
(60) months of the Commencement Date.” 

 
From a financial sustainability standpoint, the lease holds Main Street Delaware (the Tenant) 
responsible for all utility payments in a timely manner, with lease termination as the penalty 
should the Tenant fail to make these obligations. Main Street Delaware will also be responsible 
for maintenance and repairs to the property as outlined in Article 9 of the lease. 
 



 
 

 

Should Council approve this lease agreement, Main Street Delaware will work with the City as 
they intend to create an ADA accessible ramp to this property to make the Welcome Center 
accessible to all. Main Street has designed and estimated the cost of providing an ADA 
accessible ramp with the required ancillary items such as a new door, hardware, and adjacent 
exterior surfaces, in excess of $40,000.  This would be a focus for fundraising efforts by Main 
Street and may require additional partnership with the City to expedite the process. 
 

Recommendation & Next Steps 

Staff recommends approval by Council of the Delaware Welcome Center Lease with Main Street 
Delaware with the first reading to occur at the July 13, 2020 City Council Meeting.  If approved 
by Council, staff will coordinate with Main Street on removing the remaining City files from the 
property along with planning the timeline for renovations to the facility.  Should Council have 
any questions, please contact Kyle Kridler who is the internal Project Manager. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") 
made and entered into this ___  day of _____________, between The City of 

Delaware, Ohio (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") and Main Street 
Delaware.  (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant").    

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Landlord is the fee owner of certain real property being, lying 

and situated in Delaware County, Ohio, such real property having a street 
address of 20 East William Street, Delaware, OH 43015 (hereinafter referred to 

as the "Premises").     
 
WHEREAS, Landlord seeks to lease the Premises to Tenant under the 

terms and conditions contained in this lease; and    
 

WHEREAS, Tenant seeks to lease the Premises from Landlord under the 
terms and conditions contained in this lease;    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar 
($1.00), the covenants and obligations contained herein and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:    
 

 1. TERM.  Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from 
Landlord the above described Premises together with any and all 
appurtenances thereto, for a term of ten (10) years, with the option of two-five 

year renewals provided the Tenant is not in default of any provisions hereof. 
and the term shall begin on (a)_____________ day of _____________ month, 2020 
(Commencement Date).  For purposes of this lease, the term, “Lease Year” shall 

mean a period of 12 consecutive calendar months following the 
Commencement Date.  Each succeeding Lease Year shall commence upon the 

anniversary date of the Commencement Date.  
 

2. RENT.  The total rent per year for the term hereof is the sum of 

one dollar ($1).  Annual rent rate will be reevaluated upon the expiration of the 
initial 10 year lease commitment. 

 
3. USE OF PREMISES.  The Premises shall be used and occupied by 

Tenant as a Community Welcome Center and office.  The following activities are 

permitted in the welcome center: 
a. Welcome Center 
b. Tenant Office 

c. Community Meetings/Gatherings/Event Space 



 

 

d. Subtenant Space with agreement from the City in alignment 
with the Mission of the Tenant 

e. Welcome Center shall be open and staffed during normal 
business hours along with the agreed upon events, that are 

open to the general public, and as outlined in Exhibit A to be 
reviewed on an annual basis between the Landlord and 
Tenant. 

f.      A restroom shall be available for public use during standard 
business hours and during Tenant’s Events held outside of 
business hours and as outlined in Exhibit A 

g. Tenant shall ensure that space is provided in the Welcome 
Center for Landlord literature approved for the venue. 

 
Additional uses agreed upon by both parties will be included in an addendum 
to this lease.   Tenant shall comply with any and all laws, ordinances, rules 

and orders of any and all governmental or quasi-governmental authorities 
affecting the cleanliness, use, occupancy and preservation of the Premises.  

 
4. CODE AND REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS.  Prior to using the 

premises for activities, Tenant will make all improvements required by zoning, 

use, building or other code sections.  Tenant must obtain all necessary permits 
from the Landlord for all work.  Landlord agrees to waive all of its permit 
application fees associated with work required under this section. 

 
Tenant shall make required improvements to the property as described below. 

This includes, but is not limited to: 
 

a. Renovation/improvements to the first level exterior porch 

within eighteen (18) months of the Commencement Date. 
b. Interior remodel work (flooring, fresh paint, general interior 

improvements) within sixty (60) months of the 

Commencement Date. 
 

5. ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-LETTING.  Tenant shall not assign this 
Agreement, or sub-let or grant any license to use the Premises or any part 
thereof without the prior written consent of Landlord.  Consent by Landlord to 

one such assignment, sub-letting or license shall not be deemed to be a 
consent to any subsequent assignment, sub-letting or license.  An assignment, 

sub-letting or license without the prior written consent of Landlord or an 
assignment or sub-letting by operation of law shall be absolutely null and void 
and shall, at Landlord's option, terminate this Agreement.  

 
6. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS.  Aside from improvements 

made pursuant to the CODE IMPROVEMENTS section of this lease, Tenant 

shall make no alterations to the buildings or improvements on the Premises or 
construct any building or make any other improvements on the Premises 



 

 

without the prior written consent of Landlord, except as may from time to time 
be deemed necessary by Tenant for adapting the Premises to the requirements 

and uses of Tenant and for the installation of its fixtures, appliances and 
equipment only if such improvements are less than $1,000.  Any and all 

alterations, changes, and/or improvements built, constructed or placed on the 
Premises by Tenant shall, unless otherwise provided by written agreement 
between Landlord and Tenant, be and become the property of Landlord and 

remain on the Premises at the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement.  
 

7. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Tenant shall not keep on the Premises 
any item of a dangerous, flammable or explosive character that might 

unreasonably increase the danger of fire or explosion on the Premises or that 
might be considered hazardous or extra hazardous by any responsible 
insurance company.   

 
8. UTILITIES.  Tenant shall be responsible for arranging for and 

paying for all utility services required on the Premises.  In the event Tenant 
fails to pay utility bills by the time they are due, Tenant shall have a 30-day 
cure period to pay the bills.  Failure to cure shall result in termination of the 

lease. 
 

9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR; RULES.  Tenant will, at its sole 

expense, keep and maintain the Premises and appurtenances in good and 
sanitary condition and repair during the term of this Agreement and any 

renewal thereof.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Tenant shall:   
 

a. Not obstruct the driveways, sidewalks, courts, entry ways, 

stairs and/or halls, which shall be used for the purposes of 
ingress and egress only; 

b. Keep all windows, glass, window coverings, doors, locks and 

hardware in good, clean order and repair; 
c. Not obstruct or cover the windows or doors; 

d Not leave windows or doors in an open position during any 
inclement weather;  

e Not hang any laundry, clothing, sheets, etc. from any 

window, rail, porch or balcony nor air or dry any of same 
within any yard area or space, except for temporary signs as 

permitted by City ordinance; 
f Not cause or permit any locks or hooks to be placed upon 

any door or window without the prior written consent of 

Landlord; 
g Keep all air conditioning filters clean and free from dirt; 
h Keep all lavatories, sinks, toilets, and all other water and 

plumbing apparatus in good order and repair and shall use 
same only for the purposes for which they were constructed.  



 

 

Tenant shall not allow any sweepings, rubbish, sand, rags, 
ashes or other substances to be thrown or deposited therein.  

Any damage to any such apparatus and the cost of clearing 
stopped plumbing resulting from misuse shall be borne by 

Tenant; 
i. Ensure that Tenant's guests shall at all times maintain order 

in the Premises and at all places on the Premises, and shall 

not make or permit any loud or improper noises; 
j Keep all radios, television sets, stereos, etc., turned down to 

a level of sound that does not annoy or interfere with other 

tenants; 
k Deposit all trash, garbage, rubbish or refuse in the locations 

provided therefore and shall not allow any trash, garbage, 
rubbish or refuse to be deposited or permitted to stand on 
the exterior of any building or within the common elements.  

Tenant is responsible for trash, rubbish and recycling 
removal from property. 

 
10. DAMAGE TO PREMISES.  In the event the Premises are destroyed 

or rendered wholly untenantable by fire, storm, earthquake, or other casualty 

not caused by the negligence of Tenant, this Agreement shall terminate from 
such time except for the purpose of enforcing rights that may have then 
accrued hereunder. 

 
11. INSPECTION OF PREMISES.  Landlord and Landlord's agents 

shall have the right at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement 
and any renewal thereof to enter the Premises to inspect the Premises and all 
buildings and improvements thereon and to make any repairs, additions or 

alterations as may be deemed appropriate by Landlord for the preservation of 
the Premises or the building.   The right of entry shall likewise exist for the 
purpose of removing placards, signs, fixtures, alterations or additions, that do 

not conform to this Agreement or to any restrictions, rules or regulations 
affecting the Premises. The landlord shall be provided a grand master key to 

access the building and all interior rooms.  
 
12. RENEWAL.  In keeping with conditions of Section 1 of this 

agreement, the Tenant will have option of two five-year renewals. Future 
renewals must be negotiated by the Landlord and Tenant. 

 
13. SURRENDER OF PREMISES.  Upon the expiration of the term 

hereof, Tenant shall surrender the Premises in as good a state and condition as 

they were at the commencement of this Agreement, reasonable use and wear 
and tear thereof and damages by the elements excepted. 

 

 



 

 

14.   PARKING.  As a part of this lease, four (4) parking spaces will be 
available for Main Street Delaware, including any subtenant(s) to the property.  

These four parking spaces will be the ones located closest to the building in the 
south lot as outlined in Exhibit B. Tenant will be responsible for monitoring 

guest parking. If a car is parked illegally, it may be towed at the owner’s 
expense. 

 

15.  PEST CONTROL.  Tenant shall be responsible for all pest and 
vermin control within the Premises. 
 

16. SIGNAGE.  All signs posted by Tenant on the Premises must be in 
conformance with current city code and is subject to all planning review and 

approval process.   
 
17. NONDISCRIMINATION.  Tenant shall not discriminate against any 

member of the public on the basis of age, race, color, sex, religion, ancestry, 
political affiliation, military status, or disability. 

 
18.   TAXES & ASSESSMENTS.  The property is currently not subject 

to property taxes.  However, Tenant shall pay or cause to be paid any and all 

real estate taxes and installments or assessments on the Premises which result 
from any activity in the space that causes property taxes to be assessed.  

 

19. INSURANCE. Tenant will maintain an insurance policy with a 
$1,000,000 limit and name Landlord as an additional insured party.  

Contractors and vendors who use the Premises are required to name both 
Tenant and the City of Delaware as additional insured parties on their policies.  
In the event Tenant fails to maintain the required insurance policy, this lease 

shall terminate automatically.  
        

20. INDEMNIFICATION.  Landlord shall not be liable for any damage 

or injury of or to the Tenant, Tenant's guests, invitees, agents or employees or 
to any person entering the Premises or the building of which the Premises are a 

part or to goods or equipment, or in the structure or equipment of the 
structure of which the Premises are a part. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold Landlord harmless from any and all claims or assertions 

arising out of Tenant’s actions or failure to act. 
 

21. DEFAULT.  If Tenant fails to comply with any of the material 
provisions of this Agreement, other than the covenant to pay rent, or of any 
present rules and regulations or any that may be hereafter prescribed by 

Landlord, or materially fails to comply with any duties imposed on Tenant by 
statute, within seven (7) days after delivery of written notice by Landlord 
specifying the non-compliance and indicating the intention of Landlord to 

terminate the Lease by reason thereof, Landlord may terminate this Agreement. 



 

 

Tenant shall have a 30-day cure period following written notice by Landlord.  
Failure to cure shall result in termination of the lease. 

  
22. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES.  The rights and remedies under this 

lease are cumulative, and either party's using any one right or remedy will not 
preclude or waive that party's right to use any other. These rights and remedies 
are in addition to any other rights the parties may have by law, statute, 

ordinance, or otherwise.  
 
23. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed, construed 

and interpreted by, through and under the Laws of the State of Ohio. 
 

24. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement or the 
application thereof shall, for any reason and to any extent, be invalid or 
unenforceable, neither the remainder of this Agreement nor the application of 

the provision to other persons, entities or circumstances shall be affected 
thereby, but instead shall be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by 

law.  
 

25. BINDING EFFECT.  The covenants, obligations and conditions 

herein contained shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legal 
representatives, and assigns of the parties hereto.  

 

26. DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS.  The descriptive headings used herein 
are for convenience of reference only and they are not intended to have any 

effect whatsoever in determining the rights or obligations of the Landlord or 
Tenant.  

 

27. CONSTRUCTION.  The pronouns used herein shall include, where 
appropriate, either gender or both, singular and plural.  

 

28. NON-WAIVER.  No indulgence, waiver, election or non-election by 
Landlord under this Agreement shall affect Tenant's duties and liabilities 

hereunder. 
   

29. MODIFICATION.  The parties hereby agree that this document 

contains the entire agreement between the parties and this Agreement shall not 
be modified, changed, altered or amended in any way except through a written 

amendment signed by all of the parties hereto.   
   

30. NOTICE.  Any notice required or permitted under this Lease or 

under state law shall be deemed sufficiently given or served if sent by United 
States certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

 

To Landlord: City of Delaware, Ohio 
   Attention:  R. Thomas Homan City Manager 



 

 

   1 South Sandusky Street 
   Delaware, Ohio 43015 

   Phone:  740.203.1010 
   Email:  cmo@delawareohio.net  

 
 
To Tenant:  Main Street Delaware 

   Attention:  Susie Bibler Executive Director 
   20 East William Street    
   Delaware, OH 43015 

   Phone:  740.362.6050 
   Email:  director@mainstreetdelaware.com  

 
Landlord and Tenant shall each have the right from time to time to change the 
place notice is to be given under this paragraph by written notice thereof to the 

other party. 
 

 
31. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS; DISCLOSURES. 

____________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________ 

[Landlord should note above any disclosures about the premises that may 
be required under Federal or Ohio law, such as known lead-based paint 
hazards in the Premises. The Landlord should also disclose any flood 

hazards.]  
 
 

 
As to Landlord, this ______ day of _______________________, 2020.   

LANDLORD: 
 
 

Sign: ___________________________________  
City of Delaware by R. Thomas Homan, City Manager Date: ______________ 

 
 
 

 
  
As to Tenant, this ______ day of ____________, 2020.   

TENANT ("Tenant"): 

mailto:cmo@delawareohio.net
mailto:director@mainstreetdelaware.com


 

 

 
 

Sign: ___________________________________  
Print: __________________________________ Date: ______________ 

 
TENANT: 
 

Sign: ___________________________________  
Print: __________________________________ Date: ______________ 
 

Approved as to form: 
 

Darren Shulman,  
Delaware City Attorney 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
Welcome Center and public restrooms shall be open and staffed during Tenant 

business hours as well as during the following agreed upon events to be 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Landlord and Tenant: 
 

• Delaware Main Street First Friday Events 

• Saturday Farmers Markets 

• Performance Auto Show 

• Arts Festival 

• Main Street Christmas Parade 

• Home for The Holidays Weekend Events 

• Chocolate Walk 

• Veterans Parade 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Parking Spaces Available on site for 20 E William Street Tenant shall be the 
four (4) spaces located closest to the south of the building as outlined in yellow 

below. 
 

 



CITY OF DELAWARE
Business Plan/Proposal for 
Delaware Welcome Center 

November 15, 2019



2

Our Organization    3
Key Personnel      6
Financial Statement     7
Proposed Funding Model   8
Proposed Construction Budget  9
Conceptual Design    10

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Main Street’s Award Winning Christmas Celebration



3

OUR ORGANIZATION

Main Street Delaware is a 501(c)(3), non-profit economic development organization that advocates 
specifically for the downtown business district. As an entirely volunteer run organization we clock over 
4,750 volunteer hours per year and bring 5,000 -15,000 people downtown for shopping and entertainment 
every month. Additionally, Main Street themed events strengthen community ties through outreach 
opportunities for the schools and university, fire and police, non-profits and private businesses.

Vision for a Welcome Center
• Expand Main Street’s services offerings: Main Street currently works one on one with business and 

building owners to lighten the burden of government by providing free design and development 
consultation, business training, and support. Current services are limited by available space for 
educational programming that would support further investment into downtown businesses and real 
estate.

• Provide a public welcome center: Downtown is the living room of our community. Main Street seeks 
to provide a memorable, comfortable, and welcoming place where all citizens and visitors can feel 
at home. To this end, Main Street can provide visitors information about local businesses, upcoming 
events, and opportunities. Main Street may offer restroom facilities to visitors during operating hours.

• Restore and maintain a historical building: Downtown Delaware consists of a cohesive grouping of 
late 19th and early 20th century buildings that create a sense of place and connection to local history. 
The subject property contributes to the historic downtown fabric; however, having been constructed 
for residential purposes, the building is not ideal for modern commercial business uses. Main Street’s 
occupancy can put the building to its highest and 
best use.

• Improve public infrastructure: Recent and ongoing 
Main Street projects include improvements to 
“shortcut alley”, sidewalk cleanup, and building 
graffiti removal. These projects are limited by 
individual project fundraising efforts and volunteer 
coordination and availability. Main Street would 
like to increase beautification and improvement 
efforts. Main Street is currently exploring options to 
provide enhanced services to property owners for 
improvements to the public right-of-way through 
a property owner supported special improvement 
district (SID). Services may include sidewalk repairs 
and litter, graffiti, and snow removal, as well as 
public safety and communication. Expansion of 
services will require additional support spaces 
unavailable at Main Street’s current location.

Main Street Volunteers in Action



4

Commitment to Delaware
Main Street Delaware helps to preserve and promote the historic downtown, as well as educate and 
entertain visitors from everywhere. It is our job to showcase the historic downtown district. We do this in 
many ways: 
• Helping new and potential businesses through our Design and Business Enhancement committees.
• Educating people about the history of the community through, for example: our “Hidden Spaces” event 

and special tours (given upon request), including those for prospective Ohio Wesleyan students and 
families.

• Creating memorable experiences for residents and visitors through our successful First Friday events, 
Chocolate Walk, and “Home for the Holidays” event, Summer on Winter Concerts series.

• Nourishing the community through our Farmers’ Market, which supports the availability of fresh, 
nutritious food May through October.

• Working with businesses on promotions, improvement plans, and marketing initiatives through 
successful Promotions Committee programs such as “Merchants and Muffins”, and our social media 
marketing campaign.

Main Street’s Summer on Winter Concert Series



5

Past Performance
Over the last 20 years, Main Street Delaware has seen downtown change from a downtown with a few 
shops and restaurants with a high percentage of vacancy to what we know today as a vibrant destination. 
The vision our organization provided, paired with the city’s approach to preservation, has made downtown 
Delaware, what we know today as the heart of the community. We believe it is because of this, Delaware 
is worthy of awards like, Money Magazines, “Top 100 Places to Live in America”, the American Planning 
Association Award for “Top 13 Places in America”.

Judd and Laura Scott
V & P Hydraulics
740-203-3600

Rock Jones
Ohio Wesleyan University
rfjones@owu.edu

Terri Lynn and Mark Smiles
The Greater Gouda
614-560-5968

References



6

KEY PERSONNEL

Zachary Price, Board President Elect

Zach Price is an Owner of TRIAD Architects, a full-service architecture and 
interior design firm located in Columbus, Ohio. TRIAD was formed as a 
consortium of leading designers in 1997 and has grown to a firm of multi-
disciplined professionals with over a quarter-billion dollars of construction 
projects currently in contract. TRIAD is a recognized leader in historic design 
and renovation and has been awarded the National Preservation Award from 
the National Trust for Historic Preservation.

Additionally, Zach has developed, owns, and manages approximately 50,000 square feet of historic 
buildings that were awarded historic preservation tax credits through the Ohio Historic Preservation 
Office and National Park Service. Zach currently has an additional 60,000 square feet of historic buildings 
in development seeking historic approvals through the State of Ohio. He has worked in all aspects of 
historic rehabilitation and development from financing, leasing, design and construction, operations and 
maintenance. Zach currently serves as the President Elect of the Main Street Delaware Board of Directors 
and resides in downtown with his wife Melissa and three children.

Susie Bibler, Executive Director

Susie has had a fulfilling career working with non-profit organizations. Starting 
in 2005 with The Delaware County Chapter of the American Red Cross. This led 
to six years with The United Way of Delaware County focusing on fundraising. 
After United Way, she worked for two years as a Major Gifts Fundraiser for The 
Columbus Zoo and Aquarium.  

These positions prepared her for present task as the Executive Director of Main 
Street Delaware, Inc. Main Street is best known for their signature events that 
create a sense of community in Delaware, First Fridays, and the seasonal bi-

weekly Farmers’ Markets. Since October 2016, Susie has enjoyed the privilege to work alongside many 
community volunteers, downtown business and property owners, and city leaders to help make Delaware 
the best place to live, work and play! Susie has called Delaware home for the last 19 years. Her and her 
husband Jim enjoy raising their 2 children; Mallory (19)  and Colin (17). 

Caroline received her Associates of Applied Arts in Digital Design & Graphics 
from Columbus State Community College in May of 2018 and began working 
for Main Street Delaware, Inc. as the part-time Administrative Assistant in 
June of 2018. Caroline was then promoted to fill-time Program Coordinator 
in October 2019. Prior to her time with Main Street, Caroline also worked at 
Coffeeology and The Bare Bowl, two downtown Delaware establishments.

Caroline grew up in Delaware and has always loved downtown and the spirit 
of collaboration and community it has, much of which is created by Main Street 
Delaware, as well as the relationship between the business owners, community 
members and visitors. She feels privileged to be a part of the organization that 
is spear-heading vibrancy in the community!

Caroline Pusateri, Program Coordinator



7

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Oct 31, 19 Oct 31, 18 $ Change % Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
MSD CHECKING - DCB 29,813.73 20,836.75 8,976.98 43.1%
MSD Reserved Operating Saving 20,014.75 15,006.49 5,008.26 33.4%
Petty Cash 15.00 15.00 0.00 0.0%
Stripe to replace PayPal 5,602.37 650.60 4,951.77 761.1%

Total Checking/Savings 55,445.85 36,508.84 18,937.01 51.9%

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 2,175.00 10,900.00 -8,725.00 -80.1%

Total Accounts Receivable 2,175.00 10,900.00 -8,725.00 -80.1%

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expense/Membership 650.00 650.00 0.00 0.0%
Undeposited Funds 0.00 715.00 -715.00 -100.0%

Total Other Current Assets 650.00 1,365.00 -715.00 -52.4%

Total Current Assets 58,270.85 48,773.84 9,497.01 19.5%

Fixed Assets
MainStreetDelaware.com Redisign 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.0%
LESS ACCUMULATED WEBSITE DEPR -1,333.00 0.00 -1,333.00 -100.0%
Heater/AC 5,800.00 5,800.00 0.00 0.0%
LESS ACCUMULATED A/C DEPR -354.00 0.00 -354.00 -100.0%
EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,524.21 2,524.21 0.00 0.0%
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -1,554.00 -1,503.00 -51.00 -3.4%

Total EQUIPMENT 970.21 1,021.21 -51.00 -5.0%

Total Fixed Assets 17,083.21 18,821.21 -1,738.00 -9.2%

TOTAL ASSETS 75,354.06 67,595.05 7,759.01 11.5%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 900.00 1,075.00 -175.00 -16.3%

Total Accounts Payable 900.00 1,075.00 -175.00 -16.3%

Other Current Liabilities
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES

State withholding Taxes 239.35 140.40 98.95 70.5%
City Withholding Taxes 161.69 100.33 61.36 61.2%
SS/MC Withholding Tax 1,319.14 829.76 489.38 59.0%
Federal Withholding Tax 840.00 430.00 410.00 95.4%

Total ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 2,560.18 1,500.49 1,059.69 70.6%

Accrued Retirement Payable 1,666.70 1,551.00 115.70 7.5%

Total Other Current Liabilities 4,226.88 3,051.49 1,175.39 38.5%

Total Current Liabilities 5,126.88 4,126.49 1,000.39 24.2%

Total Liabilities 5,126.88 4,126.49 1,000.39 24.2%

Equity
Retained Earnings 47,160.44 33,687.28 13,473.16 40.0%
Net Income 23,066.74 29,781.28 -6,714.54 -22.6%

Total Equity 70,227.18 63,468.56 6,758.62 10.7%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 75,354.06 67,595.05 7,759.01 11.5%

10:47 AM MAIN STREET DELAWARE, INC.
11/14/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2019

Page 1



8

PROPOSED FUNDING MODEL
Main Street Delaware will oversee renovation of the welcome center and provide in-kind services to 
operate and maintain the two-story building and surrounding property. The Delaware Convention and 
Visitors Bureau, or other subtenant, will contribute funding towards operating and maintaining the facility 
and have offices inside the building. Additional service offerings, including operation of the Welcome 
Center, may be provided based on subtenant contributions.

Income Inflators 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Subtenant Rent 3% 21,000 21,630 22,279 22,947 23,636 24,345 25,075 25,827 26,602 27,400

Additional Rent (CAM) 2% 8,500 8,670 8,843 9,020 9,201 9,385 9,572 9,764 9,959 10,158

1st Floor Main Street Office 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Income 29,500 30,300 31,122 31,968 32,836 33,729 34,647 35,591 36,561 37,559

Expense

Replacement Reserves 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Repairs & Maintenance 2% 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 5,520 5,631 5,743 5,858 5,975

Trash & Utilities 2% 8,400 8,568 8,739 8,914 9,092 9,274 9,460 9,649 9,842 10,039

Cleaning 2% 6,500 6,630 6,763 6,898 7,036 7,177 7,320 7,466 7,616 7,768

Insurance 2% 3,400 3,468 3,537 3,608 3,680 3,754 3,829 3,906 3,984 4,063

Total Expense 27,300 27,766 28,241 28,726 29,221 29,725 30,240 30,764 31,300 31,846

Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Operating Income 2,200 2,534 2,881 3,241 3,616 4,004 4,408 4,827 5,262 5,713

Cumulative Operating Income 2,200 4,734 7,615 10,856 14,472 18,476 22,884 27,711 32,973 38,686

Source of Funds Amount Use of Funds Amount

1st Mortgage 3.95% 20 year 0 Construction 190,978

Fundraising Minimum 60,076 Non-Construction 19,098

City Façade Grant 20,000

Foundation Grant 15,000

Heritage Ohio Grant 20,000

State Capital Budget Grant 75,000

In-kind Service Fees 20,000

Total Sources of Funds 210,076 Total Uses of Funds 210,076

NON-PROFIT DOCUMENT

Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

 Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS.

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e.

 
S

ee
 S

p
ec

ifi
c 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

p
ag

e 
3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership)  

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions)  

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 
U.S. person Date 

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

MAIN STREET DELAWARE, INC

✔ NON PROFIT

501C3

3 1 1 6 7 9 9 1 6



9

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION BUDGET
Funding Model
Construction and capital expenses will be paid through a combination of retained earnings, in-kind services, 
and a capital campaign. Main Street has submitted for grant funding in the amount of $20,000 from 
Delaware County Foundation. Additionally, Main Street identified $20,000 in grant funding available from 
Heritage Ohio. In-kind services include professional architecture and engineering services of approximately 
$20,000. Additional funding will be secured through a capital campaign and grants.  

Operation expenses will be paid from general revenue funds and subtenant contributions. A Sublease 
is anticipated with the Convention and Visitor Bureau (CVB). Both the CVB and MSD seek to promote 
economic activity within the City and County. 

Other potential uses and funding sources may include services provided to a special improvement district 
(SID). MSD is moving forward with downtown property owners and the City on initial steps for the formation 
of a SID. Future SID services may include additional office space for part time employees and storage 
for SID equipment. SID equipment may include supplies and equipment for streetscape cleaning, snow 
removal, safety ambassador equipment (bicycles, helmets, vests, etc…).

Construction (Hard) Costs

Unit Cost Per Unit Quantity
Demolition

Selective demolition (carpet, lighting, walls) lump sum $2.50 3016 $7,540

Site Work

Concrete sidewalks sq. ft. $5.50 300 $1,650

Landscaping allowance $500.00 1 $500

Replace basement railing ln. ft. $43.00 20 $860

Exterior & Building Envelope

Exterior painting (porch, windows, cornice) sq. ft. $3.80 1500 $5,700

Masonry restoration allowance sq. ft. $5.25 1000 $5,250

Masonry cleaning sq. ft. $1.50 4000 $6,000

Parge chimneys allowance $2,000.00 1 $2,000

Replace exterior siding allowance $3,000.00 1 $3,000

Porch restoration allowance $15,000.00 1 $15,000

Replace porch roofing sq. ft. $5.00 550 $2,750

Replace downspouts ln. ft. $14.00 60 $840

Replace select exterior doors each $2,500.00 3 $7,500

Interior

Paint interior walls, ceilings, and trim sq. ft. $2.80 3016 $8,445

Replace lighting sq. ft. $4.00 3016 $12,064

Refrigerator and dishwasher each $800.00 2 $1,600

Kitchen countertop each $1,000.00 1 $1,000

Window treatments each $150.00 25 $3,750

Resilient flooring sq. ft. $12.00 300 $3,600

Flooring refinish allowance sq. ft. $3.00 2700 $8,100

Relocate basement stair and finish floor allowance $8,000.00 1 $8,000

Mechanical, Electrical & Plumbing

Replace furnace and air conditioner each $12,000.00 2 $24,000

Replace water heater each $1,200.00 1 $1,200

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment allowance $35,000.00 1 $35,000

Design Contingency 5% $8,267

Expected Bid Cost $173,616

Construction Contingency 10% $17,362

Construction Cost Budget $190,978

Non-Construction (Soft) Costs

Unit Cost Per Unit Quantity

Non-Construction (Soft) Costs 10% $19,098

Non-Construction Cost Budget $19,098

Total Project Budget $210,076



10

CONCEPT DESIGN



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-45    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE LOCAL 

CORONAVIRIUS RELIEF FUND AS WELL AS SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

Resolution 20-37 authorized City administration to request a share of grant 
funds from the CARES Act to assist the City in offsetting costs incurred to 
mitigate the spread of the Coronavirus.    

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

The City’s allocation of this grant funding equals $750,116 and to properly 
account for these monies, the cash, revenues and expenditures linked to this 
CARES Act funding are to be maintained in a Local Coronavirus Relief Fund 

which does not currently exist within the City’s chart of accounts.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
In addition to seeking authorization to establish the Local Coronavirus Relief 
Fund this ordinance requests supplemental appropriations in the amount of 

$750,116 of which $741,516 will be used to reimburse the City for costs incurred 



to reduce the spread of the Coronavirus throughout the community with the 
balance of $8,600 being returned to Delaware County as this portion of the 

overall distribution reflects an overpayment that the City received from the 
CARES Act.  Any unencumbered cash balance from the original grant allocation 

as of 10/15/2020 will need to be returned to the Delaware County Auditor.  Any 
remaining cash balance in this fund as of 12/28/2020, regardless if the monies 
are encumbered, will also need to be returned to State of Ohio.    

 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

 
PRESENTER(S): 

Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval 
 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 20-45 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION 

OF THE LOCAL CORONAVIRIUS RELIEF FUND 

AS WELL AS SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 20-37 authorized City administration to request a 

share of grant funds from the CARES Act to assist the City in offsetting costs 

incurred to mitigate the spread of the Coronavirus; and 

WHEREAS, in order to properly account for the City’s allocation of these 

grant dollars which equals $750,116, governmental entities in the State of Ohio 

that receive CARES Act funding are required to account for these monies through 

a Local Coronavirus Relief Fund; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1:  That the City Finance Director is hereby authorized to 

establish the Local Coronavirus Relief Fund (Fund 284).  

SECTION 2:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Local Coronavirus Fund (Fund 284) $750,116 

Transfer (284.2840.5701)   $741,516 

Refund  (284-2840-5601)   $8,600 

SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 

law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 

safety, health and welfare of the City in an effort to properly account for CARES 

Act grant funding and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon 

its passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

PASSED:  _________________________, 2020  YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________________       ________________________ 

               CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 07/13/2020 
 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-46    RESOLUTION NO: 
 

READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

 
VIA:  Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 

 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

While administering the 2020 Budget, various modifications to existing 
appropriations have been identified that will require supplemental 
appropriations prior to the end of the current fiscal year.  These modifications 

are attributed items including the refunding of debt in the 1st quarter of 2020 
that was not included with the current year budget as well as capital funding 
estimates whereby the budgeted amounts did not include sufficient 

appropriations based on the final project bids.    
 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This ordinance is needed to provide supplemental appropriations to sustain 
know expenditures that were not originally budgeted for in 2020 as well as 

maintaining budget compliance pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

N/A 
 

 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The following table outlines the fund, expenditure account, the amount of the 

requested appropriations along with a justification to support the modification 
to the 2020 budget: 

 

 
 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 

PRESENTER(S): 
Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval after second reading 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 

Fund Org Amount Reason

Police Judgement Fund 253.5230.5710 17,044.00$          Transfer to Fund 254 Not in 2020 Budget

Park Bond Fund 301.3010.5811 16,167,000.00$  Debt Refunding for Rec Center Not  in 2020 Budget

Park Bond Fund 301.3010.5812 67,000.00$          Debt Refunding for Rec Center Not  in 2020 Budget

SE Highland Bond 302.3020.5811 280,000.00$        SE Highland Debt Service Not in 2020 Budget

SE Highland Bond 302.3020.5812 548,320.00$        SE Highland Debt Service Not in 2020 Budget

Capital Improvement 410.4118.5520 543,000.00$        Full Cost Est of Building Renovation Not in 2020 Budget

Water Construction 531.5317.5532 27,000.00$          Change Order for Water Tower Painting

Water Construction 531.5330.5500 8,500.00$            Overage in Water Meter Purchases

Water Capacity 536.5316.5537 959,075.00$        2019 Lapsed Appropriation for Pollock Road



 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 20-46 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 

APPROPRIATIONS AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY. 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the 2020 Annual Appropriations 

Ordinance to provide for various expenditures through the end of fiscal year 

2020. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Police Judgement Fund (Fund 253) $17,044 to: 

Transfer (253.2530.5701)   $17,044 

SECTION 2:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Park Bond Fund (Fund 301) $16,234,000 to: 

Principal (301.3010.5801)   $16,167,000 

Interest (301.3010.5811)   $67,000 

SECTION 3:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the SE Highland Bond Fund (Fund 302) $828,320 to: 

Principal (302.3020.5801)   $280,000 

Interest (302.3020.5811)   $548,320 

SECTION 4:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 410) $665,953 to: 

Bldg Renovations (410.4118.5520)  $665,953 

SECTION 5:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Water Construction Fund (Fund 531) $35,500 to: 

Paint Elevated Tanks (302.3020.5801) $27,000 

Meter Replacements (531.5330.5500) $8,500 

SECTION 6:  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Water Capacity Fund (Fund 536) $959,075 to: 

Olentangy Ave River Xing (536.5316.5537) $959,075 

 



 
 

 
 

SECTION 7.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 

deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 

formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 

law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 

SECTION 8.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 

safety, health and welfare of the City, and for the further reason that such action 

is necessary to provide for expenditures through the end of the fiscal year being 

December 31, 2020, and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon 

its passage. 

 

 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

PASSED:  _________________________, 2020  YEAS____ NAYS____ 

    ABSTAIN ____ 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________________       ________________________ 

               CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 
 


	01 2020713 council agenda
	02 council minutes
	03 20200603planning minutes signed
	04 civil service and shade tree minutes
	05 Fact Sheet Res 20-38, John Street 6.30.20
	06 Res 20-38, John Street Bridge OPWC Grant 6.26.20
	07 Resolution John Street Images 6.30.20
	08 Fact Sheet Res 20-39, The Point & Signals Update 6.30.20
	09 Res 20-39, The Point & Signals MORPC Updates 6.26.20
	10 Citywide Signals MORPC 2020
	10 the Point MORPC 2020
	11 Fact Sheet RES 20-40,  E Central Improvements 6.30.20
	12 Res 20-40, E Central Improvements Grant Applications  6.26.20
	13 Resolution Concept Exhibit (Central) 6.30.20
	15 fact sheet res 20-41, diversity inclusion
	16 Res 20-41, diversity inclusion evaluation
	17 fact sheet res 20-42, street naming policy
	18 res 20-42, Honorary Street Naming Policy 8.5.19
	19 Honorary Street Name Policy (Revised) 3.6.20
	20 fact sheet res 20-43 , litle brown jub honorary street name
	21 RES 20-43 ,Honorary Street Names Little Brown Jug
	22 little brown jug letter
	23 FACT SHEET Ord 20-40, Amending Section 913.23 of the Delaware City Code
	24 Ord 20-40, Amending Section 913.23 of the Delaware City Code (002)
	25 Exhibit A
	26 fact sheet ord 20-41 , 2020-1037 Menges
	27 ord 20 -41 , rezone 2020-1037 Menges Propery
	28 2020-1037 menges rezone staff report
	29 Fact Sheet ord 20-42 , FSP 2020-1165 Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase A  FSP
	30 ord 20-42, , FSP 2020-1165 Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase A
	31 Fact Sheet ord 20-43 , FSP 2020-1166 Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase B  FSP
	32 ord 20-43 , FSP 2020-1166  Ravines at Olentangy Section 2 Phase B
	33 2020-1165-1166 ravines at olentangy staff report
	34 fact sheet ord 20-44, mainstreet lease agreement DRAFT 1
	35 ord 20-44,  maintreet lease agreement  DRAFT 1
	36 Delaware Welcome Center Memo 7.7.2020 DRAFT 1
	37 Delaware Welcome Center LEASE Updated 7-6-2020
	38 CityOfDelaware-Main Street Delaware - Triad Architects & Main Street
	39 fact sheetOrd 20-45,  Authorizing COVID Grant Fund and l Appropriations
	40 Ord 20-45,Authorizing the Coronavirus Grant Fund and Supplemental Appropriations
	41 Fact Sheet Ord 20-46,Supplementing the 2020 Appropriations
	42 Ord 20-46, Supplementing the 2020 Appropriations



